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Notice for the 5*" Annual General Meeting

NOTICE is hereby given that the Fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company Bahucharaji Rail
Corporation Limited will be held on Thursday, the 28" December, 2023 at 1:45 p.m. (at a
shorter notice) through Video conferencing/OAVM mode with a deemed place of meeting
at Block No. 6, 7th Floor, Udhyog Bhavan, Sector 11, Gandhinagar - 382011 to transact the

following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 together with the reports of the Board of Directors

and Auditors and comments of Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon.

2. To appoint Shri B. C. Warli (DIN: 07133942), who retires by rotation as a Director and

beingeligible offers herselffor re-appointment.

3. Toappoint ShriRaj Swarup Kapoor (DIN: 08303688), who retires by rotation as a Director

and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To authorize Board of Directors of the Company to fix the remuneration of the Statutory
Auditors of the Company appointed by the office of CAG of India for audit of accounts of
the Company for the year 2023-24.

Regd. Office: By order of the Board of Directors
Block No. 6, 7th Floor,
Udyog Bhavan,
Sector -11,
Gandhinagar - 382 011
Sd/-
Date: 28" December, 2023 CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR

NOTES:

1. Shareholders seeking any information regarding any aspect of this report are requested
to write to the company well in advance so as to enable the management to keep the

information ready.
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BAHUCHARA]JI RAIL CORPORATIONLIMITED
(CIN: U45101GJ2018SGC105602)
Reg. Office: Block No. 6,7 "Floor,Udhyog Bhavan, Sector-11,Gandhinagar, Gujarat-382011

DIRECTORS' REPORT

To,

The Members,

BAHUCHARAJI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

Gandhinagar, Gujarat

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 5™ Annual Report on the business and
operations of Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited (“the Company”) and the accounts for the

financial year endedon 31°*March, 2023.
1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY ORHIGHLIGHTS/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY:

The financial position of the Company for financial year ended on 31°* March, 2023 is as

L 5" Annual Report (F.Y. 2022-2023)

follows: (Amount in )
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Revenue from Operations 20,14,22,225 43,92,45,536
Other Income 7,95,11,452 3,59,74,956
Total Revenue 28,09,33,677 47,52,20,492

Less: Total Expenses

(22,18,62,789)

(46,06,30,692)

Profit /(Loss)Before Tax 5,90,70,798 1,45,89,800
Less: Tax Expenses (8,49,32,680) (93,06,216)
Profit /(Loss) after tax (2,58,61,882) 52,83,584

2. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY'S WORKING DURING THE YEAR:

The Company is startedcommercial operations during the year.

a) During the year for Phase I of the project, engine rolling successfully completed & SAG

inspection completed successfully and automobile rake loading started during the year.

b)  Forfield supervision and contract management, Project Management Consultancy agency
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hasbeen working.

c) Other in-house day to day works for smoother progress of project are being undertaken by

the Company.

d) Land Acquisition for the project is being coordinated with State Government and District

Administration.
e) Monitoring the progress of project for various activities.
f) Liasoning with Railways and State Government on all issues related to Project.

The management is accelerating its activities and speed up implementation of Phase II of

the projectduringthe year.

3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

Duringthe financial year under review, there isno Change in the nature of business.
4. DIVIDEND:

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors did not recommend any

Dividend on theEquity Shares of the Company.
5. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

During the financial year under review, Company has not transferred any amount to

General Reserve.
6. DEPOSITS:

During the financial year under review, the Company has not accepted any Deposits from
the public and it is therefore not required to comply with the requirement under the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
7. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS:

During the year under review, the Company has not given any loans, made any investments
or given guarantees on any loans, which fall within the purview of the provisions of Section
134(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence, no disclosures are required to be made

thereof.
8. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

The Company is Joint Venture Company promoted by, Gujarat Rail Infrastructure
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10.

Development Corporation Limited, Gujarat Industrial Development Corporation and
Maruti Suzuki India Limited. Therefore by virtue of shareholding agreement of the

company becomesJoint Venture Company of ].V. Partners.
ANNUAL RETURN:

The Company do not have any website therefore pursuant to the provisions of Section 134
(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder, with respect to
requirements for website disclosures relating to Annual Return (Form MGT - 7) are not
applicable to the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY AND CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL, IF ANY:

The Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as at 31°
March, 2023 as follows:

SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Authorised Share Rs. 7,86,22,00,000 (Rupees Seven Hundred Eighty Six Crores and Twenty Two
Capital * Lakhs Only) divided into 78,62,20,000 (Seventy Eight Crores Sixty Two Lakhs

Twenty Thousand) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

Issued, Subscribed and | Rs.612,12,24,020/- (Rupees SixHundred Twelve Crores Twelve Lakhs Twenty
Paid-up Share Capital **| Four Thousand Twenty only) divided into 61,21,22,402(Sixty One Crores

Twenty One Lakhs Twenty Two Thousand Four Hundred and Two)Equity
Shares ofRs. 10/- each.

**Allotment of 11,52,05,202 (Eleven Crore Fifty Two Lakh Five Thousand Two Hundred and

Two) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each to equity shareholders of the Company on right basis in

tranches, which shall rank pari passu in all respect with existing shareholders w.e.f 22" April,

2022,20™July, 2022, 22" September, 2022 and 3" November, 2022 respectively during the year.

11.

12.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS:

The Company has not issued any Equity Shares with Differential Voting Rights during the
financial year and it is therefore not required to make disclosures specified in Rule 4 (4) of

Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.
DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF SWEAT EQUITY SHARES:
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The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the financial year and it is
therefore not required to make disclosures specified in Rule 8 (13) of Companies (Share

Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.
13. DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION:

The company has not issued any shares under Employee Stock Option Scheme during the
financial year and itis therefore not required to make disclosures specified in Rule 12 (9) of

Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.
14. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

As the Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited is not a Listed Company therefore section 197
(12) and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,

2014, statement of particulars of employees are notapplicable to the Company.

15. DIRECTORSAND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

During the financial year under review, details of Board of Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel as well as changes made in the Composition of the Board of Directors and Key

Managerial Personnel (KMPs) as on the date of this Reportare as follows:

Sr. Name of Directors/ DIN Designation Date of Date of
No. KMP Appointed Appointment Cessation
1 Santosh Kumar, IRSE 07854179 Director 13/12/2018 Continue
2 Bajrang Warli 07133942 Director 13/12/2018 Continue
3 Jwalesh Zaveri 09507224 Nominee 16/02/2022 Continue
Director

4 Raj Swarup Kapoor 08303688 Director 13/12/2018 Continue
5 Pawan Agarwal 09650740 Director 20/07/2022 Continue
6 Batchu Venugopal 08303687 Director 13/12/2018 | 20/07/2022
7 Santosh Kumar, IRSE AFPPK5776D CEO 22/09/2020 Continue
8 Shambhuprasad Joshi | ABEP]6568K CFO 22/09/2020 Continue

16. DIRECTORSLIABLE TO RETIRE BY ROTATION:

Pursuant to the Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Santosh Kumar (DIN :
07854179) and Shri Pawan Agarwal (DIN: 09650740) retires by rotation at the AGM of the
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Company and being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment. The Company has
received the disclosure in Form DIR-8 stating that they are eligible to be re-appointed at

theforthcoming AGM of the Company.
17. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION:

The Company is not required to make disclosures pursuant to Rule 5 of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)Rules, 2014 relating to

Managerial Remuneration being an Unlisted Company.

18. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Directors' Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (c) of sub-section (3) of

Section 134 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, shall state that—

(a) Inthepreparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards had

been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions

ofall applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

(c) The Directors had selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial

year and of the profitand loss of the Company for that financial year;

(d) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(e) TheDirectorshad prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis;

19. BOARD MEETING:

Notice of Meeting is prepared and circulated in advance to the Directors as required under
Secretarial Standards. During the year, Four Board Meetings were convened and held on

20" July, 2022, 22" September, 2022, 19" December, 2022 and 14" March, 2023.
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20. BOARD EVALUATION:

As per the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India vide notification dated
05thJune, 2015, Government Companies are exempted from the provision of sub-section 3
clause (p) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. Your company being a Government

Company, provision of Board Evaluation is notapplicable.

21. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

During the year under review, the provisions pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule (6) of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules,

2014 were notapplicable to the company in context of Audit Committee.

22. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

During the year under review, the provisions pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with rule (6) of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules,
2014 were not applicable to the company in context of Nomination and Remuneration

Committee.

23. INTERNALAUDIT & CONTROLS:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with the
size and nature of its business. Internal Audit Reports given by M/s Trupal ]. Patel &
Associates, Chartered Accountants, Internal Auditors of the company are self-explanatory
and hence do not call for any further comments. The Services of M/s Trupal ]. Patel,
Chartered Accountants were found satisfactory for F. Y. 2022-23and Board reappointed
them for a further period of one year for F. Y. 2023-24.

24. AUDITORS:
The Auditors, M/s. NAUTAM R VAKIL &CO (FRN: 106980W), Chartered Accountant,

Ahmedabad, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year
2023-24 by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, vide Letter No.
CA.V/COY/GUJARAT,BRCL (1)/716 dated 18/09/2023.

25. AUDITORS' REPORT:

The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification. Notes to Accounts and Auditors
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remarksin their reportare self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

26. COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The Company has received letter no. A.M.G.-1/Accounts/BRCL/2022-23/0.W. 1350 dated
6™ December, 2023 from Comptroller and Auditor General of India on the audited
accounts of the company for the year ended on 31/03/2023 stating that nothing
significant has come to the knowledge which would give raise to any comment upon

statutory Auditors' Report by C&AG.
27. SECRETARIALAUDIT REPORT:

The Company has obtained Secretarial Audit Report in Form No. MR-3 pursuant to Section
204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule (9) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 from M/s Kiran Patel and Associates,

a Practicing Company Secretary. A copy of the Reportisannexed to this Directors Report.

28. CORPORATESOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

During the year under review, the provision of Corporate Social Responsibility under

Section 135 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 isapplicable to the company.

The Companies net worth is greater than of Rs. 500 Crores as on 31st March, 2023,on the
basis of net worth criteria CSR applicability triggered to the company from the financial

year 2023-24.

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability
threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately
preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities up to

31stMarch, 2024.

The areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting
education, art and culture, healthcare, sanitation, destitute care and rehabilitation,

environment sustainability, disaster relief and rural development projects.

29. RISKMANAGEMENT POLICY:

BRCL shall identify the possible risks associated with its business and commits itself to put
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in place a Risk Management Framework to address the risk involved on an ongoing basis to
ensure achievement of the business objective without any interruptions. BRCL shall
optimize the risks involved by managing their exposure and bringing them in line with the

acceptableriskappetite of the Company.

30. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The Company has no activities which required disclosure relating to conservation of
energy or technology absorption as it is not a Manufacturing Company. There has been no

foreign exchange earnings or outgo during the year under review.

31. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL

POSITION BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT:

No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the financial year
till the date of this report, which affect the financial position of the Company other than
those specifically highlighted in this report. However the Company has allotted 49,01,961
and 16,27,50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each on 01°® August, 2023 and 21°° August,
2023 to GUJARAT RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED [G-
RIDE] and GUJARAT INDUSTRIALDEVELOPMENT CORPORATION [GIDC] respectively.

32. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR

COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

No significant or material orders were passed by the regulator or court or tribunals which

impactthe going concern status and Company's operations in future.

33. OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT

WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at work place a new act The Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

has been notified on 9" December, 2013. Under the said Act every company is required to
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34.

35.

36.

37.

38.
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set up an Internal Complaints Committee to look into complaints relating to sexual

harassmentatwork place of any women employee.

Company will adopt a policy in future for prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at
workplace and will set up Committee for implementation of said policy in future. During

the financial year under review, Company has notreceived any complaint of harassment.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS ORARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the year under review, contracts and arrangements with related parties under
Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, are reported in the Audited Balance sheet of

the Company.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY
ANDBANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016:

During the period under review, there were no applications made or proceedings pending

inthe name ofthe company under the Insolvency Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT AND VALUATION WHILE AVAILING LOAN FROM BANKS AND
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS:

During the period under review, there has been no one time settlement of Loans taken

from Banks and Financial Institutions.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:

In terms of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Investor Education and
Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, shares of
the Company in respect of which dividend entitlements have remained unclaimed or
unpaid for seven consecutive years or more, are required to be transferred by the Company
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) of the Government of India. There

were no such instances requiring compliance with the same.

STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

During the year under review, the Company has complied with all the applicable
provisions of Secretarial Standard - 1 and Secretarial Standard - 2 issued by the Institute

of Company Secretaries of India and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.
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For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of

BAHUCHARA]JI RAIL CORPORATIONLIMITED
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Date:28/12/2023

sd/- sd/-
SANTOSH KUMAR JWALESH ZAVERI
DIRECTOR & CEO DIRECTOR
[DIN: 07854179] [DIN: 09507224]
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31*MARCH, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

BAHUCHARA]JI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
BlockNo. 6, 7th Floor, Udyog Bhavan

Sector-11, Gandhinagar-382011

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited. The
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating

the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 31°* March, 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism

in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 according to the

provisions of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(i)  TheSecurities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there-under are
complied with to the extent applicable. Further, MCA vide notification dated 22nd January,
2019 exempted government companies from dematerialization of shares and hence the

same isnotapplicable to the Company.

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there-under
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(v)

(vi)

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External

Commercial Borrowings.

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') are not applicable to the Company during the period
under review.

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)

Regulations, 2008;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client;

(g) TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998;

[ further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company
and on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof on test-
checkbasis, the Company has complied with the following laws applicable

specifically to the Company:
(i) The Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970
[ have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
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(ii) The Company being unlisted is not required to comply with the Listing
Agreements of Stock Exchange(s) / SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to our following

observations:

1. We further report that the the Company is in process of appointing a suitable
candidate as Company Secretary as Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) u/s 203 of
the Companies Act, 2013 as per the information provided by the management

during the period under review

2. The vacancy occurred due to resignation of Smt. Kavita Shah on 29.03.2022 as
Women Director is yet to be filled by the company. The Company is in the process
of appointing a Women Directoras per the requirement of Section 149 of
Companies Act, 2013 as informed by the management during the period under
review.

We further reportthat

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted as on 31st March, 2023 subject to our
above observation. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the period under review were carried outin compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and in case of shorter notice required
compliance as per Companies Act,2013 has been ensured.

Majority decisionis carried through and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further reportthat

There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that

1. During the audit period the Company has:-

(i) allotted 3,67,73,831 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each aggregating to Rs. 36,77,38,310
by passing the Board Resolution by circulation on 22.04.2022 to existing

shareholder onrightbasis.
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(ii)  allotted 1,96,07,843 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each aggregating to Rs.19,60,78,430
by passing the Board Resolution in the Board meeting held on 20.07.2022 to
existing shareholder onrightbasis.

(iii)  allotted 95,84,313 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each aggregating to Rs. 9,58,43,130 by
passing the Board Resolution in the Board meeting held on 22.09.2022 to existing
shareholder onrightbasis.

(iv)  allotted 4,92,39,215 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each aggregating to Rs. 49,23,92,150
by passing the Board Resolution by circulation on 03.11.2022 to existing

shareholder onrightbasis.

For K. K. Patel & Associates

Date:30/09/2023 CS Kiran Kumar Patel

Place : Gandhinagar Proprietor
FCS No.6384, CP No0.6352
UDIN:F006384E001145049

(This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A (Page 5)

and forms an integral part of this report.)
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‘Annexure A'
To,
The Members,

BAHUCHARA]JI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
BlockNo. 6, 7th Floor, Udyog Bhavan
Sector-11, Gandhinagar-382 011

Ourreportofeven date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records

based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide

areasonable basis for our opinion.

3.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial Statements,

financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was

limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

5. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has

conducted the affairs of the company.

For K. K. Patel & Associates

Date : 30/09/2023 CS Kiran Kumar Patel
Place : Gandhinagar Proprietor
FCS No0.6384, CP No0.6352

UDIN:F006384E001145049
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ANNEXURE -1

Office of the Principal Accountant General (Audit)-II, Gujarat
No.AMG-1/Accounts/BRCL/2022-23/0W1350/06.12.2023
To,
Managing Director,
Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited,
7" Floor, Block No-6, Udyog Bhavan
Sector-11, Gandhinagar-382011

Subject: Comment of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143(6)(b) of
the Companies Act, 2013 on the financial statements of Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Sir,
Please find enclosed nil comment certificate of the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India under Section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the financial statements of

Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 for being placed before

Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Under Section 143(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 the comments of the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India are required to be sent by Company to every person entitled to copies of
audited financial statements under Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and also to be
placed before the Annual General Meeting of the Company at the same time and in the same
manner as the Statutory Auditor's Report of the Company. The date of placing the Report of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India before the Annual General Meeting may please be

intimated to this office.
Six copies of the printed accounts may please be sent to this office for our use and record.
Receiptofthisletter with its enclosures may please be acknowledged.
Yours faithfully,
Sr. Dy. Accountant General(AMG-I)

Encl: As above
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION
143(6)(b)OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
BAHUCHARAJIRAIL CORPORATION LIMITED FORTHEYEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The preparation of financial statements of the Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. The
Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139
(5) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section
143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their
Audit Reportdated 29 September 2023.

[, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary
audit of the financial statements of Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited for the year ended 31
March 2023 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act, This supplementary audit has been carried out
independently without access to the working papers of the Statutory Auditors and is limited
primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditors and Company personnel and a selective

examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would give rise to

any commentupon or supplementto Statutory Auditor's Report.

For and on behalf of the

Comptroller and Auditor General of India

Sd/-

(Saurav Kumar Jaipuriyar)

Principal Accountant General (Audit-II), Gujarat

Place: Ahmedabad
Date:06/12/2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF

BAHUCHARA]JI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BAHUCHARA]JI RAIL
CORPORATION LIMITED ('the Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31,2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income),Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of cash flows for the year then ended,

notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS), of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its financial performance
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended on

that date.
Basis For Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial

Statements.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial

Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair

view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative butto do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting

process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® Identified and assessed the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and also performed audit procedures responsive
to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

® Obtained an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the

operating effectiveness of such controls.

® Evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

® Concluded on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to

cease to continue asa going concern.

® Evaluated the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner thatachieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent

applicable.

2. Interms of Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in Annexure 'C' a statement
on the directions issued under the aforesaid section by the Comptroller and Auditor

General of India.
3.  Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid

financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
the aforesaid financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears

from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Statement of other
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comprehensive in come and the Statement of Changes in equity and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of

account maintained for the purpose of financial statement.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as amended.

The company being Government Company, provisions of sub section 2 of section 164 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable as per Notification No.G.S.R.463 [E] dated
5thJune, 2015 of Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

reportin “Annexure B”; and

The company being Government Company, provisions of sub section 16 of section 197
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable as per Notification No.G.S.R.463 [E]
dated 5thJune, 2015 of Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information

and explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations as on Balance Sheet dated March
31,2023.

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or Indian
Accounting Standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts

including derivative contracts.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with understanding,

whetherrecorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall whether,
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- directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

- provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in

writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,

- directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

- provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries: and

(C) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under sub clause (a) and (b) above, contain any material

misstatement.

5. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
proposed final dividend for the year.

i.  As per the Section 203(1) of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 which required
appointment of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP). The company has not appointed full
time Qualified Company Secretary till the date of report. However, as per the
information and explanation provided by management, Company has availed services
of Practicing Company Secretary.

For Shah & Dalal

Chartered Accountants

[FRN: 109432W]

Sd/-

Malay Dalal

Partner

Place : Ahmedabad M. No.: 036776

Date : 29/09/2023

UDIN:23036776BGW]JZ4551

= = = == == == _‘T_ars__?'_ _ == == = = ==




L 5" Annual Report (F.Y. 2022-2023)

o

“ANNEXURE A” TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirement

section of our Report of even date)

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors; Report to the members of BAHUCHARAJI
RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED (“the Company”) on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2023.

Wereport that:
() InrespectofFixed Assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plantand Equipmentif any.

(b) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Right of Use

Assetin Financial Statement.

(C) According to the information and explanations are given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are

held in the name ofthe Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations are given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not revalued its Property,
Plant & Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the

year.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no proceedings
have been initiated and/or are pending against the company for holding any Benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules

made there under. Hence, this clause is not applicable to the company.
(i) Thecompany doesnothave any inventory therefore this clause is notapplicable.

(iii) Accordingto information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the record of the company during the year the company has not made investment in,
provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnership or other parties

covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,
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2013.Therefore, clause (iii) of the paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable to the

company.

(iv)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, nor given any guarantees and securities u/s 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,

2013.Thus, the clause (iv) of the paragraph 3 of the orderis notapplicable to the company.

(v)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year as per the
directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and within the meaning of provision of section
73 to 76 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed
there under where applicable. Thus, the clause (v) of the paragraph 3 of the order is not

applicable to the company.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records specified by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to this Company. Thus, the clause (vi)
ofthe paragraph 3 ofthe orderis notapplicable to the company.

(vii) Accordingto the information and explanation given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company had been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including,
Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, and other material statutory dues applicable to

the appropriate authorities.
(b) Thereisnodispute withrevenue authorities regarding any duty or tax payable.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has notsurrendered or disclosed
any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax

assessmentsunder the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (@) The company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institutions,
banks, government, or debenture holders during the year. Thus, the clause (ix) of

paragraph 3 of the orderis notapplicable to the company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful

defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or governmentauthority.

(C) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the

= = = == == == _‘T_ars__?'_ _ == = = = =




B=—
¥ 5" Annual Report (F.Y. 2022-2023)
ba CL

Company has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of

the Orderisnotapplicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet of the company, we report that no funds raised on short-

term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that the company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiary as defined under Companies Act, 2013.The Company does not hold any
investment in any associate companies or joint ventures as defined under Companies Act,
2013.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed
by us, we report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of

securities held inits subsidiary as defined under Companies Act,2013.

(x)  (a)Tothebestof our knowledge and according to the information and explanation given to
us, during the year Company has not raised money by way of Initial Public Offer and/or
Further Public Offer(including Debt Instrument)and also company has not obtained any
Term loan and therefore this clause is not applicable to the company. However, company
has utilized the monies raised by way of issue of equity shares for the purpose for which

they were raised.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible) during the year under review in terms of provisions of section 42
and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xi) (a)Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the

Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the period.

(b)According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section
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(12) of Section143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under rule13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended

with the Central Government.

(c) According to information and explanations given to us, there is no whistle blower

complainthasbeenreceived by the company during the year.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi

Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Orderis notapplicable.

(xiii) Inouropinionand according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
is in compliance with section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, wherever
applicable. For all transaction with the related parties and the details of related parties'
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required by the

applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

(xiv) (a)Based oninformation and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our
opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and

nature of its business.

(b)We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the

period under audit.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, during the
period Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with its directors or

persons connected with them during the period.

(xvi) (a) & (b) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, provision of clause 3 (xvi) (a) & (b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(c) & (d), The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) and clause

3(xvi)(d) ofthe Orderis notapplicable.

xvii. The Company hasnotincurred cashlossesinthe currentand intheimmediately preceding

financial year.

xviii. Therehasnotbeenanyresignation of the statutory auditors during the period.
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xix.  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, Plans of the Board of Directors and management we are of the opinion that no
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report, that the company is capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due

within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

xx.  According to information and explanation given to us, unspent amount which is required
to be transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance
with second proviso to sub section (5) of Section 135 of the Said Actis not applicable to the
company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are notapplicable.

xxi.  According to information and explanation given to us, Company does not have any
Associate, Joint Venture Company. Thus, the clause (xxi) of the paragraph 3 of the order is

notapplicable to the company.

For Shah & Dalal
Chartered Accountants
[FRN: 109432W]

Sd/-

Malay Dalal

Partner

Place : Ahmedabad M. No.: 036776

Date : 29/09/2023
UDIN:23036776BGW]JZ4551
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Annexure “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

section of our report of even date)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Report on the Internal Financial Control under clause (i) of Sub section 3 of Section 143 of the

companies Act, 2013 ("the Act").

We have audited the Internal financial controls over financial reporting BAHUCHARAJI RAIL
CORPORATION LIMITED (“the Company”) as on 31° March 2023 in conjunction with our audit

ofthe financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.
MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FORINTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's Board of Director is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential component of internal control stated in the guidance note
on audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable

financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
issued by the ICAI and the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirement and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate financial controls over

financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
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allmaterial respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedure selected depend on auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due of fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies

and procedures that:

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transaction are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statement in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipt and expenditures of the company are being made only in

accordance with authorizations of managementand directors of the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a

material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATION OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitation of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
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including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate.
OPINION

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the
company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31°* March, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by The

Institute of Chartered Accountant of India.

For Shah & Dalal
Chartered Accountants
[FRN: 109432W]

Sd/-

Malay Dalal

Partner

Place : Ahmedabad M. No.: 036776

Date : 29/09/2023
UDIN:23036776BGW]JZ4551
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“Annexure C” to the Independent Auditors' Report of
Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited
To
The Members

Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited

In continuation of our Independent Auditor's Report on Financial Statements of BAHUCHARAJI
RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED (“The Company”), we have reported on Directions and Sub-
directions under 143 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable for the year 2022-2023, as

under:

Reportunder Section 143(5) of Companies Act, 2013 for the Financial Year 2022-23

(1) MAIN DIRECTION:
Sr. . .
Directions Comments
No.
1. Whether the Company has system in place to process |Yes. All Accounting transactions are

all the accounting transactions through Information
Technology system? If yes, the implications of
processing of accounting transactions outside IT
system on the integrity of the accounts along with the
financial implications, if any, may be stated.

processed through Information
Technology Systems. Therefore,
there is no financial implication on
theintegrity of the accounts.

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan
or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest
etc. made by a lender to the Company due to the
Company's inability to repay the loan? If yes, the
financialimpact may be stated.

No waiver/write off is done during
the period under Audit.

Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received
/receivable for specific schemes from Central/State
Government or its agencies were properly accounted
for/utilized as per its term and conditions? List the
cases of deviation.

As per the information and
explanation provided to us, the
Company has not received any
amount for specific scheme from
Central/State agencies except share
capital amount received from Gujarat
Industrial Development Corporation
and Gujarat Rail Infrastructure
Development Corporation Limited
and the same is accounted properly
and deposited in bank account.
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(2) SECTOR SPECIFIC DIRECTIONS : INFRASTRUCTURE SECTOR

Sr.
No.

Sub-Directions

Comments

1.

Whether the Company has taken adequate measures
to prevent encroachment of idle land owned by it.
Whether any land of the Company is encroached,
under litigation, not put to use or declared surplus?
Details may be provided.

As per the information and
explanation provided to us, during
the course of audit we have observed
that the company does not have any
idle land and therefore, there is no
question of encroachment to the idle
land as well as there is no litigation in
connectiontoidleland.

Whether the system in vogue for identification of
projects to be taken up under Public Private
Partnership is in line with the guidelines/ policies of
the Government? Comment on deviation ifany.

Not Applicable.

Whether system for monitoring the execution of
works vis-a-vis the milestones stipulated in the
agreement is in existence and the impact of cost
escalation, if any, revenues/ losses from contracts,
etc., have been properly accounted forin the books.

As per the information and
explanation provided to us, we report
asunder:

1. System for Monitoring the
Execution of Works:

a. Company has appointed Gujarat
Rail Infrastructure Development
Corporation Limited (G-RIDE) in its 1°*
Board Meeting held on 09.01.2019 as
Project Management Consultant
(PMC) and the Contract for said PMC
has been executed on 28.08.2020.

b. Company therefore has an
adequate system of monitoring for
the project where G-RIDE is providing
service as mentioned in PMC
Agreement at Para 1.1, which
constitute a better monitoring
system for company project.

2. Agreement Milestone Status:

a. Company has awarded EPC
Contract to Kalpataru Power
Transmission Limited (KPTL) for 1st
Phase of Katosan Road — Becharaji
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(26.6 Kms) and specified Milestone
(MS) for the project as under, which
are extended by issuing letter bearing
reference no. G-RIDE/Transaction
Advisor/2019-20/038/4662 dated
13.04.2023 to KPTL as per the Office
Memorandum issued by Ministry of
Finance, Department of Expenditure,
Procurement Policy Division:

Sr. Milestone | Completion | Revised Remarks
No. Date as per | Completion
Contract Date
Agreement

1 MS-1 19-08-2020 14-02-2021 Milestone
Achieved
in  Dec-
2020

2 MS-II 19-06-2021 | 19-04-2022 | Milestone
Achieved
in Feb
2022

3 MS-1lI 19-10-2021 19-04-2022 Milestone
Achieved
inMay -
2022

4 MS-IV 19-02-2022 | 30-08-2023 Milestone
Achieved
inAug -
2023

b. Company has awarded EPC
Contract to Ashoka Buildcon Limited
(ABL) for 2nd Phase of Becharaji —
Ranuj (38.153 Kms) and specified
Milestone (MS) for the project as
under:

Sr. Milestone | Completion | Revised Remarks
No. Date as per | Completion
Contract Date
Agreement
1 MS-| 31-08-2022 | - Milestone
Achieved
inMay -
2022
2 MS-II 28-02-2023 | - Milestone
Achieved
in Feb
2023
3 MS-IlI 30-07-2023 | - Milestone
Achieved
inJuly -
2023
4 MS-IV 30-11-2023 -

3. The Impact of Cost Escalation:

Company has adequately accounted
the Escalation Amount in Books of
Account claimed by the EPC
Contractor during the year under
report, which are as per the Contract
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Agreement and approved by the
competentauthority.

4., Whether funds received/ receivable for specific
schemes from central/ State agencies were properly
accounted for/utilized? List the cases of deviations.

As per the information and
explanation provided to us, the
Company has not received any
amount for specific scheme from
Central/State agencies except share
capital amount received from Gujarat
Industrial Development Corporation
and Gujarat Rail Infrastructure
Development Corporation Limited
and the same is accounted properly
and depositedin bankaccount.

As per the information and
explanation provided to us, the
company has not availed any Bank
Guarantee during the year. However,
the company has received Bank
Guarantees and the same has been
revalidated by the Companyintime.

5. Whether the bank guarantees have been revalidated
intime?
6. Comment on the confirmation of balances of trade

receivables, trade payables, term deposits, bank
accountsand cash obtained.

We have obtained following

Confirmations and all are in

agreement with figures of Financial

Statements:

1. Bank Balance Certificate from
Yes Bank and Union Bank of
India.

2. Balance & Interest certificate of
Deposit with GSFS.

3. Balance Confirmation of
Gujarat Rail Infrastructure
Development Corporation
Limited.

4, Balance and Interest receivable
on Mobilization advances and
Trade Payables from EPC
Contractor (M/s. Kalpataru
Power Transmission Limited
and M/s. Ashoka Buildcon
Limited).
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5. Cash Balance as on 31.03.2023
from Management.

6. Balance Confirmation from
Trade receivables (M/s. Maruti
Suzuki India Limited) as on
Balance Sheet date.

7. The cost incurred on abandoned projects may be
guantified and the amount actually written-off shall
be mentioned.

As per the information and
explanation provided to us, there are
no abandoned projects therefore this
pointisnotapplicable.

Place : Ahmedabad
Date :29/09/2023

For Shah & Dalal
Chartered Accountants
[FRN: 109432W]

Sd/-

Malay Dalal
Partner

M. No.: 036776

UDIN:23036776BGW]]JZ4551
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BAHUCHARAIJI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
( AJV of G-RIDE, GIDC & MSIL)

CIN:U45101GJ20185GC105602

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(Amount inZ)
] Not As at As at
Particulars otes March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment 4 1006 19 873 -
Intangible Assets 5 3481991479 --
Right of Use Asset - Leasehold Office 6 5342 360 68 68 749
Capital Work-in-Progress 7 88632478 612 04 875
Intangible Assets Under Development 8 2205799 177 227 51 65960
Other Non-Current Assets 9 26 54 31 676 44 97 80 096
Income Tax Assets (Net) 13 24898729 89 88 488
TOTAL NON -CURRENT ASSETS 617 27 15772 2802008 168
CURRENT ASSETS
Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivable 10 89124844 1367 99 196
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 219435492 395925174
(iii) Other balances with banks 12 - 200 00 00 000
Other Current Assets 15 95 10 565 8227195
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 318070 901 254 09 51 565
TOTAL ASSETS 649 07 86 673 5342959733
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 612 12 24 020 496 91 72 000
16
Other equity (562 76 913) (304 15 030)
17

TOTAL EQUITY

606 49 47 107

493 87 56 970
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As at As at

Particulars Notes March 31,2023  March 31, 2022

LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities

(i) Other financial liabilities 18 74462730 799 04 829
Other Non-Current liabilities 19 1595 250 107 250
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 20 84932680 --
TOTAL NON -CURRENT LIABILITIES 16 09 90 660 80012 079

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
(i) Trade Payable 21
MSME -- --
Others 20 69 40 349 3024 49455
Disputed Dues - MSME -- --
Disputed Dues - Other -- --

(ii) Other financial liabilities 22 14 42 900 1312625
Other current liabilities 23 564 65 657 204 28 604
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 26 48 48 906 324190 684
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 649 07 86 673 5342959733

Significant accounting policies
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 1to 47

Notes on accounts form integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Shah & Dalal For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

FRN. 109432W

sd/- sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Malay Dalal S. N. Joshi Jwalesh Zaveri R S Kapoor
Partner CFO Director Director
Membership No. 036776 DIN: 09507224 DIN: 08303688

UDIN:23036776BGWJJZ4551

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Gandhinagar
Date: September 29, 2023 Date: September 29, 2023
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( A JV of G-RIDE, GIDC & MSIL)
CIN:U45101GJ20185GC105602
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on March 31, 2023
(Amount in ¥)
For the period from For the period from
Particulars Notes April 01,2022 to  April 01, 2021 to
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 25 20 14 22 225 43 92 45536
Other Income 26 79511452 35974956
Total Income 28 09 33 677 47 52 20 492
Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 27 19 99 03 066 44 2047 349
Employee benefit expense, payment to contractors and
28 7793771 3095 806
consultants
Finance costs 29 610795 350532
Depreciation and amortisation expense 30 69 21 589 7 63194
Other expenses 31 66 33 658 14373811
Total Expenses 2218 62 879 46 06 30 692
Profit /(Loss) before exceptional item and taxes 59070 798 145 89 800
Exceptional Item(Net off Tax) - -
Profit/(loss) before tax 590 70 798 145 89 800
Tax expense 14
Current tax -- 92 28 768
Earlier Year Tax -- 77 448
Deferred Tax 84932680 -
Total Tax Expenses 84932680 93 06 216
Profit/(loss) after tax for the period (258 61 882) 52 83584
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Particulars Notes

For the period from For the period from
April 01, 2022 to April 01, 2021 to
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Other comprehensive income

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(ii) Income tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(iii) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(iv) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the Year(Net off Tax)

Total Comprehensive Income for the period

Earnings Per Equity Share of Face Value of Rs. 10 each 32
Basic
Diluted

Significant accounting policies

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 1to 47

(258 61 882) 5283584

(0.05) 0.02
(0.05) 0.02

Notes on accounts form integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

Chartered Accountants
FRN. 109432W

Sd/- Sd/-
Malay Dalal S. N. Joshi
Partner CFO
Membership No. 036776

UDIN:23036776BGWIJJZ4551

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Gandhinagar

For Shah & Dalal For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-

Jwalesh Zaveri
Director

DIN: 09507224

Date: September 29, 2023 Date: September 29, 2023

Sd/-

R S Kapoor
Director

DIN: 08303688
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BAHUCHARAIJI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN:U45101GJ20185GC105602
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AS ON 31/03/2023

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Amount in ¥)

Particulars Amount

As at April 1, 2021 192 37 50 000
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors --
Restated Balance as at April 1, 2021 --
Changes during the year 2021-22 304 54 22 000
As at March 31, 2022 496 91 72 000

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors --
Restated Balance as at April 1, 2022 -

Changes during the year 2022-23 1152052020

As at March 31, 2023 612 12 24 020

B. OTHER EQUITY (Amount in )

Reserves and Surplus Equity instruments
through other
Particulars General | Capital Capita.l Retained comprehensive Total
Reserve |Reserve redemption earnings income
reserve
Balance as at April 1, 2021 - - - (35698 614) - (35698 614)
(Loss)/Profit for the year - - - 52 83 584 - 52 83 584
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans
(net of tax) - - - - - -
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (304 15 030) - (304 15 030)
Payment of dividend - - - - - -
Transfer to General reserve - - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - - - (304 15 030) - (304 15 030)
(Loss)/Profit for the year - - - (258 61 882) - (258 61 882)
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans
(net of tax) - - - - - -
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (56276 913) - (56276913)
Payment of dividend - - - - - -
Transfer to General reserve - - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - - - (56276913) - (562 76913)
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see accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

Notes on accounts form integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For Shah & Dalal

Chartered Accountants

FRN. 109432W

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Malay Dalal S. N. Joshi Jwalesh Zaveri R S Kapoor
Partner CFO Director Director
Membership No. 036776 DIN: 09507224 DIN: 08303688
UDIN:23036776BGWJJZ4551

Place: Ahmedabad

Place: Gandhinagar
Date: September 29, 2023

Date: September 29, 2023
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BAHUCHARAIJI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

( A JV of G-RIDE, GIDC & MSIL)
CIN:U45101GJ20185GC105602
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Amount in ¥)

For the period from For the period from

Particulars April 01, 2022 to April 01, 2021 to

2 Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

(Increase)/Decrease in PPE

(Increase)/Decrease in Capital Work in Progress

(Increase)/Decrease in Intangible Assets (Freight Sharing Rights)

(Increase)/Decrease in Intangible Assets Under Development

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1 Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 59070798 145 89 800
Adjusted for:-

Depreciation & Amortisation 69 21 589 763194
Interest Income (7 94 98 740) (35856 312)
Finance Cost 6 10 795 350532

Operating Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital Changes (128 95 558) (20152 786)
Adjusted for Movement in Working Capital:

(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivable 47674352 (1367 99 196)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Financial Assets - 20630777
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Current Assets (12 44 962) 10166 048
(Increase)/ Decrease in Current Tax Asset - (89 88 488)
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade Payable (95509 107) 45 64 259
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Current liabilities 36037053 47 55 698
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other financial liabilities (5311 824) -
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other non current liabilities 14 88 000 -
Increase/ (Decrease) in Current Tax liabilities - (1997 352)

Operating Profit after Working Capital Changes (168 66 488) (10 76 68 254)
Taxes Paid (Net of Refund) (15910 241) (9306 216)
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) (4 56 72 287) (13 71 27 256)

(5 88 24 928)
(165 47 66 035)
(7 20 13 770)
(176 04 62 639)

(6 04 31 613)
(132 04 63 743)

(Increase)/Decrease in Non Current Assets 1843 48 420 (1514 87 017)
(Increase)/Decrease in Financial Assets 200 00 00 000 (104 00 00 000)
Interest Income 79460332 7001 716
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) (128 22 58 620) (256 53 80 657)
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For the period from For the period from

Particulars April 01, 2022 to April 01, 2021 to
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
3 Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds From Share Capital 1152052 020 304 54 22 000
Interest Expense on account of Lease Liability (610795) (350532)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) 11514 41 225 304 50 71 468
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)+(C) (17 64 89 682) 34 25 63 556
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 395925174 53361618
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year 2194 35 492 395925174
Break up of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Balances with Banks - Current Accounts 12 94 35 492 81575 227
Balance with GSFS - Liquid Deposit 9 00 00 000 314349947
2194 35492 395925174

Notes:

1. Cash and cash equivalentinclude cash and bank balances and deposits with the Bank (Original
Maturity less than 3 months).

2. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect method’ as set out in
the Ind AS - 7 Statement of Cash Flow.

3. Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever considered necessary to
conformtothe currentyear's figures.

Notes on accounts form integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For Shah & Dalal

Chartered Accountants

FRN. 109432W

For and on behalf of the Board

Membership No. 036776
UDIN:23036776BGWJJZ4551

DIN: 09507224

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: September 29, 2023

Place: Gandhinagar
Date: September 29, 2023

Sd/- sd/- sd/- Sd/-
Malay Dalal S. N. Joshi Jwalesh Zaveri R S Kapoor
Partner CFO Director Director

DIN: 08303688
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BAHUCHARAJI RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ending on March 31, 2023

Corporate Information:

Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited, is a special purpose vehicle (SPV) for the Railway
project as per GR No.MIS-10-2017-1665-1-1 dated 05/02/2018 issued by Government of
Gujaratto carry on the business of development, financing, planning and implementation of
Gauge Conversion of Katosan Road-Becharaji-Chanasma-Ranuj for 65 Kms line project in

the state of Gujarat.

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with resolution of the

Directors on September 29, 2023.
(i) BasisofPreparation

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the

measurement date.
A. Statement of Compliance:

These financial statements of the company have been prepared to comply with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) including the rules notify under the relevant provision of the

Companies Act,2013,amended from time to time.
Details of the Company's accounting policies are included in Note 3(ii).
B. Functional and Presentation Currency:

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the

Company's functional currency.
C. Use of Estimates and Judgements:

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and

assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
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assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Critical Estimates and Judgments

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates
and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed
information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes
together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the

financial statements.
Areasinvolving critical estimates or judgements are:

e Depreciation and Amortization:

- Depreciation and amortization are based on management estimates of the future useful
lives of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. Estimates may change due
to technological developments, competition, changes in market conditions and other
factors and may result in changes in the estimated useful life and in the depreciation and

amortization charge.

e Other areasare asbelow:

-  Estimation of current and deferred tax expense and payable:

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is regarded as probable that
deductible temporary differences can be realized. The Company estimates deferred tax
assets and liabilities based on current tax laws and rates and in certain cases, business
plans, including management's expectations regarding the manner and timing of
recovery of the related assets. Changes in these estimates may affect the amount of
deferred tax liabilities or the valuation of deferred tax assets and there by the tax charge

in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Provision for tax liabilities requires judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation,
developments incase laws and the potential outcomes of tax audits and appeals which
may be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore, the actual results may vary from
expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax
assets, cash tax settlements and therefore the tax charge to the Statement of Profit and

Loss.
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- Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies:

From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings and other contingencies
the ultimate outcome of each being always subject to many uncertainties inherent in
litigation. A provision for expense is made when it is considered probable that a

payment will be made, and the amount ofthe loss can be reasonably estimated.

Significant judgement is made when evaluating, among other factors, the probability of
unfavourable outcome and the ability to make a reasonable estimate of the amount of
potential loss. Expense provisions are reviewed at each accounting period and

revisions made for the changes in facts and circumstances.

- Impairment of Assets:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets that are subject to depreciation/
amortization are tested for impairment periodically including when events occur or
changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit is less than its carrying value. The recoverable amount of cash generating units is
higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The calculation involves use of
significant estimates and assumptions which includes turnover and earnings
multiples, growth rates and net margins used to calculate projected future cash flows,

risk-adjusted discountrate, future economic and market conditions.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to

accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.
D. Measurement of Fair Values:

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of

fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs

used in the valuation techniques as follows.
-Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets foridentical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2:inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the

assetor liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) orindirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
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(unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or aliability, the Company uses observable market
data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall
into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level

input thatis significantto the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of

the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the

note of financial instruments.

(ii) Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the period
presented in these financial statements.

a. Foreign Currency Transactions:

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the
Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the

average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign

currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss, except exchange differences arising

from the translation of the following items which are recognized in OCI:
- Equity investments at fair value through OCI (FVOCI);

- qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.
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b. Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Initial Measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to

the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Afinancial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at
fair value through profitand loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to

itsacquisition orissue.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement and Gain and Losses: Financial Assets

Financial Assets at amortized cost- These assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognized in profit or loss. Any gains or loss or derecognition is effected in profit or loss

statement.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) - All
equity investments are measured at fair values. Investments which are not held for trading
purposes and where the Company has exercised the option to classify the investment as at
FVTOCI, all fair value changes on the investment are recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI). The accumulated gains or losses are recognized in OCI are reclassified to

retained earnings on sale of such investment.

Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and loss (FVTPL) - These assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or

dividend income, are recognized in profit orloss.

Classification, Subsequent Measurement and Gains and Losses: Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using an effective interest
method. For trade and other payable maturing within one year from the balance sheet date,

the carrying value approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these investments.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the




""'I'|||||

company after deducting all of its liabilities. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issuance of equity instruments are recognized as a deduction from equity instrument net of

any tax effects.

Derecognition: Financial Assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows
in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the

financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its
balance sheet but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the

transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Derecognition: Financial Liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are

discharged or cancelled or expired.

The Company also derecognizes financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with

modified termsisrecognized in profitorloss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the
balance sheetwhen, and only when, the Company currently has alegally enforceable right to
set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously.
c. Currentand Non-Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-

currentclassification. An assetis treated as current when itis:

L 5" Annual Report (F.Y. 2022-2023)
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(a) expected to be realised in, or is intended to be sold or consumed in Company's normal

operating cycle;
(b) held primarily for the purpose of being traded.
(c) expectedtoberealised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(d) cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a

liability for atleast 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified asnon-current.

ALiability is current when:

(a) itisexpectedtobesettled in Company's normal operating cycle;

(b) itisheld primarily for the purpose of beingtraded;

(c) itisduetobesettled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(d) The Companydoesnothave anunconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
foratleast 12 months after the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Operating Cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its

operating cycle.
d. Property, Plantand Equipment

Recognition and Measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised

borrowing costs, lessaccumulated depreciation, and accumulated impairmentlosses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and
rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its
intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the

site onwhichitislocated.
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The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of
materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to
working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing

theitem and restoring the site on which itislocated.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and

equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in

profitorloss.

Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits

associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line basis based on
the rates as per useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Assets
costing up to INR 25,000 each are fully depreciated in the year of capitalisation from the
financial year 2022-23. (As approved in 16th Board Meeting held on 14th March 2023
agendaitemNo.16/12)

Depreciation on additions / disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from / up to the

date on which assetis ready for use / disposed of.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-
end and adjusted if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortized depreciable amount

is charged over the revised remaining useful life.

Losses arising from retirement or gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which

are carried at costare recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Capital work in progress represents projects under which property, plant & equipment are
notyetready for their intended use and are carried at cost determined as aforesaid. Indirect
expense related to Capital Work in Progress has been capitalised to respective Capital Work

in Progress Account.
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e. Leases

As a lessee, the company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease

incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the Straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of -use asset or the
end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the
same basis as those of Property, Plant & Equipment. In addition, the right-of -use asset is
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-

measurements of the lease liability.

The lease Liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are

not paid atthe commencement date, discounted using the interestrate as per standard.

Lease Payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the Fix
payments, including in-subsequent fixed payments. The lease liability is measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. When the lease liability is remeasured, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is
recorded in profitand loss if the carrying amount of the right-of- use asset has been reduced
to zero. The company presents right-of-use assets (Lease hold Office) as separate line items

in Non-Current Assets and lease liabilities in 'Other financial liability' in the balance sheet.

f. Intangible Assets & Intangible Assets Under Development

(A) FreightSharing Right (Railway Line under Service Concession Arrangement)

The company recognizes an intangible asset arising from a service concession arrangement
when it has a right to charge for usage of the concession infrastructure. An intangible asset
received as consideration for providing construction or upgrade services in a service
concession arrangement is measured at fair value on initial recognition by reference to the
fair value of the services provided. Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible asset is
stated at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs, less accumulated amortization

and accumulated impairmentlosses.

L 5" Annual Report (F.Y. 2022-2023)
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The estimated useful life of an intangible asset in a service concession arrangement is the
period from when the company is able to charge the public for the use of the infrastructure

to the end of the concession period (i.e. 30 year of operation).

Freight sharing right is amortised using the straight-line method on pro-rata basis from the
date of addition or from the date when the right broughtinto service to the expiry of 30 year
of operation. Amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date,
with the effect of change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The carrying
value of intangible asset is reviewed for impairment annually or more often if events or

changesin circumstancesindicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

As authorization for operation of good traffic for Phase 1 has been Approved by Western
Railway on 23 March 2023. Hence, capitalisation of Phase 1 of Intangible Asset Under
Development capitalised on 23 March 2023.

(B) Freightsharingrightunder development

Expenditure incurred on development of existing and new assets (including revenue
sharing rights in respect of project railway are recognised as Intangibles under
development at cost incurred by company which is reckoned as fair value of services
provided including cost directly attributable including fair value adjustment of land related

to the service concession arrangement.
g. Impairment

Impairment of Financial Instruments

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets

measured atamortized cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized
costare credit-impaired. A financial asset is 'credit-impaired' when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have

occurred.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all

possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
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When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed creditassessmentand

including forward-looking information.

Measurement of Expected Credit Losses

Expected creditlosses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Creditlosses are
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the

Company expects to receive).

Presentation of Allowance for Expected Credit Losses in the Balance Sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the

gross carrying amount of the assets.
Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the
Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to

comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
The recoverable amount being higher of the net selling price or value in use. Value in use is
determined from the present value of the estimated future cash flows from the continuing

use of the assets.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than

its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)is reduced to
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its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit)is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized

immediately in the Statement of Profitand Loss.
h. Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to
foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly
attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.
I. Borrowing

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or
before the end of reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on
demand on the reporting date, the Company does not classify the liability as current, if the
lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statement

forissue, notto demand paymentas a consequence of the breach.
j- Revenue Recognition
(a) Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Company Recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step as
setoutinInd AS-115:-

(i) Identify contracts with a customer: - A contract is defined as an agreement between
two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the

criteriafor every contract that mustbe met.
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(ii) Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a

promise ina contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

(iii) Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of
consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
promised goods or services to a customer excluding amounts collected on behalf of

third parties.

(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For
a contract that has more than one performance obligation the Company allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount
of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying

each performance obligation.
(v) Recogniserevenue when or as the Company satisfies a performance obligation.
Revenue from Railway Operation

Apportionment of freight as accrued to the company under terms of the concession
agreement for freight operation on the project assets is recognized by the company in point

intime as operating revenue as per Ind AS 115 (i.e., actual freight collected by Railways).

Income is apportioned by the Railway and Recognized by Company on the basis of IRFA

Rules and various circulars issued by Railway Board from time to time.
(b) Other Revenue Recognition

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method and is accounted on

an accrual basis.
All otheritems ofincome are accounted for on an accrual basis.
k. Provisions (other than Employee Benefits)

A provisionis recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the legal or contractual obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax

rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
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specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as a financial cost.

Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

Contingencies

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines,
penalties, etc. are recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the

amount can be estimated reliably.
l. ContingentLiabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle, or areliable estimate of the amount cannot be

made.
m. Income Taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Itis recognized in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive

income.
Current Tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss
for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.
The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured

using tax rates (and taxlaws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the

liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Tax benefits of deductions earned on exercise of employee stock options in excess of

compensation charged toincome are credited to other comprehensive income.

Deferred Tax
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Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognized in respect of carried

forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred taxis notrecognized for:

- Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit/loss at the time of the

transaction.
- Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent thatitis probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong
evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of
recent losses, the Company recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has
sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that
sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be
realized. Deferred tax assets - unrecognized or recognized, are reviewed at each reporting
date and are recognized/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable

respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the

carryingamount ofits assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or their tax assets and liabilities will be

realized simultaneously.

Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is

recognized in the year in which the timing differences originate.
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n. Earnings per Share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. The weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for events of bonus issue and share split. For the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings/ (loss) per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the

year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
0. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to

aninsignificantrisk of changesin value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are

considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.
p- Events after the Reporting Period

Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the
end of the reporting period. The financial statements are adjusted for such events before
authorization for issue. Non-adjusting events are events that are indicative of conditions
that arose after the end of the reporting period. Non-adjusting events after the reporting

date are notaccounted butdisclosed.
q. Statement of cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of
past or future cash receipts or payments. Cash flow for the year are classified by operating,

investing and financing activities.
r. General

Any other accounting policy not specifically referred to are in consistent with the generally

accepted accounting principles.
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5. Intangible Assets

Freight Total

Particulars Sharin gRi ht Intangible
g Rig Assets

Gross Carrying Value
As on April 01,2022 - -
Addition 348 4595458 | 348 4595 458
Disposal - ;
Ind AS Adjustment - -
As at March 31,2023 348 4595458 | 348 4595 458
Amortization
As on April 01,2022 - -
Change for the year 26 03 979 26 03 979
Adjustments - -
Ind AS Adjustment - -
As at March 31,2023 26 03 979 26 03 979
Net Carrying Value
As at March 31,2023 3481991479 | 3481991479
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BAHUCHARAII RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ending on March 31, 2023

(Amount in ¥)

Particulars

As at

March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Right of Use Asset - Leasehold Office *

Gross carrying value
Opening
Addition
Disposal
Ind As Adjustment
Closing

Depreciation
Opening
Changes for the year
Adjustment
Ind As Adjustment
Closing

Net Carrying Value
*Refer Note No.46

Capital Work-in-Progress includes

Capital Work in Progress-Office

Capital Work in Progress-Land Acquisition

*Refer Note No 41

Intangible Assets Under Development*

Freight Sharing Right Under Development

*Refer Note No 42

Other Non-Current Assets

Advance Paid for Intangible Assets Under Development*

-Advance paid to EPC Contractors

Balance With Statutory/Government Authorities

7631943 -

- 76 31943

76 31943 76 31943

7 63 194 -

15 26 389 7 63 194

22 89 583 763194

Total 5342 360 68 68 749
- 19317377

88632478 418 87 498

Total 886 32478 612 04 875
2205799 177 227 51 65 960

Total 2205799 177 227 51 65 960
18 93 87 086 40 54 84 597

-Interest Receivable on Mobilisation Advance to EPC Contractor** 2 25 68 950 24534680
53225640 19760819

GST Receivable
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. As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deposits
Security Deposit-Torrent Power 100 000 -
Security Deposit-NSDL 1 50 000 -
Total 26 54 31 676 44 97 80 096
*As on year ended amount of Mobilization Advance and Interest Receivable thereon recoverable in next 12
months is not ascertainable. Hence Mobilization Advance and Interest Receivable thereon being in the
nature of Long Term Asset presented under other Non-Current Assets.
**Refer Note 42
10 Trade Receivable
Less than 6 months
Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered good 89124 844 13 6799 196
Undisputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Undisputed Trade Receivable - Credit impaired -- --
Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered good -- --
Disputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Disputed Trade Receivable - Credit impaired - -
6 months - 1lyear - —
1-2 years - .
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
89124844 13 67 99 196
*Refer Note No 35 & 37
11  Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks
Union Bank of India Current Account 12 28 05 601 7 08 23914
Yes Bank Current Account 66 29 891 10751313
Balance with GSFS - Liquid Deposit 9 00 00 000 314349947
Total 2194 35 492 395925174
12  Other Balances with Banks
Balance with GSFS - Inter Corporate Deposit - 200 00 00 000
Total - 200 00 00 000
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. As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
13  Income Tax Assets (Net) cy. PY.
Income Tax Provision- F.Y. 2021-22 92 28 768 92 28 768
Less:
Advance Tax Paid F.Y 2021-22 3360993 3360993
TDS Receivable FY. 2021-22 14856 263 148 56 263
TDS Receivable F.Y. 2022-23 15910242 -- 24898729 89 88 488
Total 24898729 89 88 488
14 TAXATION
TAX EXPENSE RECOGNISED IN STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
Current Tax - 92 28 768
deferred Tax 8,49,32,680 -
Total Tax Expense Recognised in Current Year 8,49,32,680 92 28 768
The Tax Expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax and Exceptional Iltem - 145 89 800
Applicable Tax Rate - 27.82
Computed Tax Expense -- 40 58 882
TAX EFFECT OF:
Exempted income - -
Expense disallowed (1,85,83,343*27.82%) - 51 69 886
Additional Allowance net if MAT Credit -- --
Current Tax Provision -- 92 28 768
Property, Plant & Equipment, Intangible Assets, Building & Plant & Machinery 8,49,32,680 -
Incremental deferred Tax Liability /(Asset) on account of Financial
Asset & other Item -- --
deferred tax Provision 8,49,32,680 --
Tax Expense Recognised in statement of Profit & Loss Account - 92 28 768
Effective Tax Rate -- 63%
Tax on Exceptional Item - .
15 Other Current Assets
Advance other than capital advance
Other Advance
Prepaid Expense 296 621 3376
Interest Receivable from GSFS 33288 8223819
Interest Receivable from Torrent Power 1421 --
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Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Unbilled Revenue* 175285 -
Expense Receivable from KPTL 18 74 638 -
Amount Receivable from MSIL 7129312 -
Total 95 10 565 82 27 195
*Unbilled revenue receivable from Western Railway for the FY. 2022-23, But billed in FY. 2023-24. Hence
booked as Unbilled Revenue in current year.
16  Equity Share Capital
Authorised

(i)

78,62,20,000 Equity Shares of X 10 each, fully paid up 786 22 00 000 786 22 00 000
(78 62 20 000 Equity Shares of X 10 each, fully paid up)* Total 786 22 00 000 786 22 00 000
Issued, subscribed
61,21,22,402 Equity shares of X 10 each, fully paid up 612 12 24 020 496 91 72 000
(49,69,17,200 Equity shares of X 10 each, fully paid up)* Total 612 12 24 020 496 91 72 000
Paid-up Capital:
61,21,22,402 Equity shares of X 10 each, fully paid up 612 12 24 020 496 91 72 000
(49,69,17,200 Equity shares of X 10 each, fully paid up)* Total 612 12 24 020 496 91 72 000
*Figures in bracket represents Previous year’s figure
Notes:
Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 49 69 17 200 496 91 72 000 19 23 75 000 192 37 50 000
Add: Issued during the year 11 52 05 202 1152052 020 304542 200 304 54 22 000
Outstanding at the end of the year 6121 22 402 612 12 24 020 49 69 17 200 496 91 72 000

(i) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

Each holder of the equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive
assets of the Company remaining after settlement of all liabilities. The distribution will be in proportion of

the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

- The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of X 10 per share.
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As at As at

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(iii) Allotment of Shares Under Right Issue
'During the year company has allotted Right Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each to below promoters:
- Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited (G-RIDE) 11,52,05,202 (PY. 12,60,00,000) Right Equity
Shares of Rs.10/-each
- Maruti Suzuki India Limited (MSIL) Current Year - Nil (PY. 14,59,17,200) Right Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each
Gujarat Industrial Development Corporation (GIDC) Current Year - Nil (PY. 3,26,25,000) Right Equity Shares of Rs.10/-

each

(iv) The details of shareholders holding more than 5 % of issued share capital is set out below:

Name of Shareholder As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding

Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development

Corporation Limited (G-RIDE) 34 24 55 202 55.95% 22 72 50 000 45.73%
Maruti Suzuki India Limited (MSIL) 204417 200 33.39% 20 44 17 200 41.14%
Gujarat Industrial Development Corporation (GIDC) 652 50000 10.66% 652 50 000 13.13%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members, the above shareholding
represents legal and beneficial ownership of shares.
The Company has not issued any Bonus Shares during the year.

(v)  Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

As at March 31, 2023 % Changes during|
Promoter Name
No. of shares | % of total shares the year
Guijarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited | 34 24 55 202 55.95% 10.21%
Maruti Suzuki India Limited 204417 200 33.39% (7.74)%
Gujarat Industrial Development Corporation 652 50000 10.66% (2.47)%
Promoter Name As at March 31, 2022 % Changes during
No. of shares % of total shares the year
Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited | 22 72 50 000 45.73% (6.90)%
Maruti Suzuki India Limited 2044 17 200 41.14% 10.73%
Gujarat Industrial Development Corporation 652 50000 13.13% (3.83)%
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. As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
17  Other Equity
Retained Earnings
Opening Balance of retained earnings (3 04 15 030) (35698 614)
Add/ Less Adjustments during the year - -
Net (Loss) / profit for the current year (258 61 882) 5283584
Closing Balance (562 76913) (3 04 15 030)
Total Reserves and Surplus (56276 913) (3 04 15 030)
18 Other financial liabilities-Non Current
Retention & With Held Money* 70197 490 7 4196 689
Lease Liability (Refer Note No 46) 42 65 240 57 08 140
Total 74462730 799 04 829
The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to other financial liabilities covered in Note 35
*This amount is primarily is in the nature of Non Current although part amount was released against bank
guarantee received from contractors. Considering the same full amount is presented under non-Current.
19 Other Non-Current liability
Payable against Capital Asset* 1595 250 -
Bid Security/Ernest Money Deposit/Performance Security* - 107 250
1595 250 107 250
*Refer Note 38
20 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Deferred tax liability on
Property, Plant & Equipment, Intangible Assets 99314701 -
Total deferred tax liability 99314701 --
Deferred tax Assets on
Preliminary Expenses 14293355 -
Improvement to Leasehold Property 88 666 --
Total deferred tax asset 14382020 -
Net Deferred Tax Liability/ (Assets) 849 32 680 -
21  Trade Payable-Current
Less than 1 Year -- -
1-2 Years -- --
2-3 years -- --
More than 3 Years - -
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Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Others
Unbilled Payable*
Less than 1 Year
Consultancy / Professional Charges Payable 144078 80 550
Electricity Expense Payable 46 039 -
Rent Expense Payable 432769 432769
Repair & Maintenance - Building Payable 96 120 63132
Internal Audit Fees Payable 14 475 101033
Man Power Service Exp Payable 6 06 242 587 255
Statutory Audit Fees Payable 90 000 67 500
Vehicle Hire Charges Payable 220442 152398
Secretarial Audit Fees Payable 45 000 45 000
Board Meeting Expense Payable 10 000 15 000
Provision for Expenses Payable-EPC Contract 194317 152 281343773
Provision for Expenses Payable-PMC Charges 10917033 15595996
Provision for Expenses Payable- Feasibility Study Expense - 37 72 000
Provision for Expenses Payable-Office 1000 193050
1-2 Years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 Years -- -
Total 20 69 40 349 30 24 49 455
*Refer Note 38
22  Others Financial liability-Current
Current maturity of lease liability*
Current maturity of lease liability unpaid 14 42 900 1312 625
Total 14 42 900 13 12 625
*Refer Note No 46
23 Other Current liabilities
Bid Security/Ernest Money Deposit 107 250 --
Statutory Dues Payable
GST Payable 7129312 -
TDS Payable 17111513 12276452
Labour Cess 57 86 992 23 90 995
TDS GST Payable 11132148 4130582
GST RCM Payable - 35326
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. As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Payable against Capital Asset* 15198442 15 95 250
Total 564 65 657 204 28 604
*Refer Note 38
24  Current tax liabilities (net)
Income Tax Provision- F.Y. 2020-21 -- --
Less:
Advance Tax Paid in F.Y 2020-21 -- --
Total TDS Receivable - --
Total - -
25 Revenue from operations
Revenue From Contracts with Customers
Construction Service* 19 8371940 36 46 20 536
Sale of Rails - 6 60 00 000
Project Management Consultancy Charges 28 75 000 86 25 000
Unbilled Revenue from Railway Operations** 175285 -
Total 20 14 22 225 43 92 45 536

* During the previous year company has entered in to MOU with MSIL & G-Ride. According to this MOU BRCL
would undertake/procure the extension of main project to the designated point in the MSIL Gujarat plant
premises at (Becharaji) (including extension & Construction of proposed railway siding as required by MSIL.
The project has been carried out by a duly qualified contractor, as identified & appointed by BRCL with
approval of MSIL. BRCL has assisted MSIL to undertake appropriate bid process for calling of tenders for and
finalization of contract. The agreed contract price of this project is Rs 63.60 Crores inclusive of all taxes. This
project would be considered as extension of the main project as per MOU.

**Unbilled revenue receivable from Western Railway for the FY. 2022-23, But billed in FY. 2023-24. Hence
booked as Unbilled Revenue in current year.

**Bahucharaji Rail connectivity line of travelled length 29.65 kilometers became operational from 23th
March 2023. The operating income of the company has been recognized for the period from 23" March 2023
to 31°t March 2023 for Bahucharaji Rail connectivity line, with the revenue pertaining to Katosan Road to
Becharaji Station being computed on provisional basis. The share of BRCL in the total revenue collected by
the Railway at the time of loading is summation of 50% of Apportioned Revenue on account of Reserved
Services & Terminal Cost (at INR 26 per tonne). Further, apportioned revenue computed based on percentage
of chargeable distance travelled on BRCL line (29.65 Km) to the total chargeable distance travelled. However,
earnings have been made available by Western Railway to BRCL in accordance with the carried route
recorded in FOIS system of CRIS.
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As at As at

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Note:

Service Concession Arrangements

Public-to-private service concession arrangements are recorded according to Appendix “D” Service
Concession Arrangements” IND-AS-115 .

Service Concession Arrangements applies if:

a) The Grantor controls or regulates which services the operator should provide with the infrastructure, to
whom it must provide them, and at what price; and

b) The Grantor controls- through ownership, beneficial entitlement, or otherwise- any significant residual
interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement.

If both of the above conditions are met simultaneously, an intangible asset is recognized to the extent that
the operator receives the right to charge users of the public service, provided that these charges are
conditional on the degree to which the service is used.

These intangible assets are initially recognized at cost, which is understood as the fair value of the service
provided plus other direct costs directly attributable to the operation. They are then amortized over the term
of the concession.

Description of Arrangement

The Bahucharaji Rail Corporation Limited (BRCL) has entered into a Concession Agreement with Ministry of
Railways (MoR), Government of India dated August 16, 2022 in terms of which the Ministry of Railways
(Authority) has authorized the Company (Concessionaire) to develop, finance, design, engineer, procure,
construct, and maintain the Project Railway and to exercise and/or enjoy the rights, powers, benefits,
privileges authorizations and entitlements upon its completion. In terms of the said agreement BRCL has
completed construction of Phase 1 of the project and further Phase 2 in work in progress. The concession
period shall be 30 years of operation.

At the end of concession period, the project assets shall be hand over by BRCL to MOR and BRCL shall be
entitled to receive and MOR shall pay to BRCL an amount equal to cost of the site (Land & Land Acquisition
related Expense only).

In the event actual Net Tonne Km shall have fallen short / excess of the Target Traffic, then for every 2% (two
per cent) shortfall / excess or part thereof as compared to the Target Traffic, the Concession Period shall be
increased/ decreased by 6(six) months respectively or part thereof; provided that such increase/ decrease in
Concession Period shall not in any case exceed 5 (five) years.

In case of material breach in terms of the agreement the MOR and BRCL both have the right to terminate the
agreement if they are not able to cure the event of default in accordance with such agreement.




5" Annual Report (F.Y. 2022-2023)

brcl

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
26 Otherincome
Tender Processing Fee 12712 118644
Miscellaneous Income - -
Interest Received
i) Interest on ICDS in GSFS 7 3372852 2 88 26 606
ii) Interest on Liquid Deposit 61 24 467 7029 706
iii) Interest on Torrent Deposit 1421 --
Total 7 95 11 452 35974 956
27 Cost of Materials Consumed
EPC Contract Expense - MSIL Line 197111576 36 73 38 839
Railway Rail Expense -- 6 60 00 000
Project Management Consultancy Expense 2791490 8708 510
Total 19 99 03 066 44 2047 349
28 Employee benefit expense, payment to contractors and consultants
Man Power Services 7793771 3095 806
Total 7793771 3095 806
29 Finance Cost
Interest on lease liability* 610 795 350532
Total 6 10 795 350532
*Refer Note No 46
30 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Amortization of Right of use Asset ( Refer Note No. 46) 15 26 389 7 63194
Amortization of Freight Sharing Right (Refer Note No. 5) 26 03979 --
Depreciation of Property, Plant & Equipment (Refer Note No. 4) 27 91221 --
Total 69 21 589 763194
31 Other expenses
Board Meeting Exp 45 000 15 000
Consultancy / Professional Charges 7 40 674 6 39 000
Demat Registration & Custody Fees 57 188 --
Insurance Expense 3376 2694
Rent Expense** - 3355633
Electricity Expense 189813 --
Feasibility Study Expense*** -- 37 72 000
Office Exp 2 88540 76 550
Diwali Gift Expense 340592 =
Round Off ( 20) -
Secretarial Audit Fees 50 000 -
Stationery & Printing Exp 162839 134243
Statutory Audit Fees” 100 000 75 000
Traveling & Conveyance Exp-Others 1120 --
Vehicle Hire Charges 3031218 2558 339
Repairs & Maintenance** 213200 619 739
Advertisement Expenses* 238 803 50312




b

—
c L 5" Annual Report (F.Y. 2022-2023)

32

33

34

. As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Tender Fees 7 500 9347
ROC & legal charges** 1163 815 30 65 954

Total 66 33 658 14373811

*Refer Note No 40
**Refer Note No 45

*** During the previous year G-Ride has billed Project Development Expenditure with 15% Mark up as
decided by BRCL in its 4th Board Meeting (Item No.4.07).

Other Expenses includes:

AAuditors Remuneration:

Statutory Audit Fees 100 000 75 000
Consultancy & Professional Fees 50 000 --
Total Total 150 000 75 000

Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)

There are no component of other comprehensive income that are required or to be disclosed.

Earnings per share (‘EPS’)
Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit/ (loss) attributable to the equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares of Rs.10 each outstanding during the year which is as under:

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

The following reflects the profit / (Loss) and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Net Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity shareholders (258 61 882) 52 83 584
Weighted average number of equity shares in computing basic and diluted EPS 57 03 89 651 2497 25768
Face value of each equity share (Rs. 10) 10 10
Basic and diluted* Earning Per share (0.05) 0.02

* There is no potential equity Shares so Basic and Diluted EPS are Same

Segment Information

In accordance with Ind-As 108, the operating segments used to present segment information are identified on
the basis of internal reports used by the Company's Management to allocate resources to the segments and
assess their performance.

The Board of Directors is collectively the Company's 'Chief Operating Decision Maker' or 'CODM' within the
meaning of Ind AS 108. The indicators used for internal reporting purposes may evolve in connection with
performance assessment measures put in place.

Information about geographical areas

The Company do not have any operations in economic environments with different set of risks and returns.
Hence, it is considered to be operating in a single geographical segment

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
There were no amounts payable to any Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises to whom the company over dues,
which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at March 31, 2023.

= = = = _‘T_ars__?'_ =_ = = = =
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35 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management
oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior management is supported by Finance
Department that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the
Company. The Finance department provides assurance to the Company's senior management that the
Company's financial risk activities are appropriately governed.
(a) Market Risk
Market Risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market prices comprises interest rate risk. The sensitivity analyses in the
following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2023. The analyses exclude the impact of movements
in market variables on; the carrying values of gratuity and other post retirement obligations: provisions; and
the non-financial assets and liabilities.
(i) Interest Rate Risk
Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The borrowings of the Company are interest free and therefore
not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107. Borrowing from G-RIDE is bearing interest rate of
9.50%. However, said loan is short term in nature and hence it will not affect future cash flows of the
company in long run.
(b) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral
obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is to, at all times maintain
optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its
liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing
including loans from banks at an optimised cost.

(i) The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments.

As at March 31, 2023 On demand Less than 3 3 to 12 months 1-5 years More than 5 Total
months years

Trade Payable 206940 349 - - - - 120 69 40 349

Other Financial Liabilities-Non current - - -| 74462730 -| 74462730

Other Financial Liabilities-Current - - 14 42 900 - - 14 42 900

As at March 31, 2022 On demand Less than 3 3 to 12 months 1-5 years More than 5 Total
months years

Trade Payable - - - - - -

Other Financial Liabilities-Non Current - - -1 79904829 - | 79904829

Other Financial Liabilities-Current - - 1312625 - - 1312 625
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(c) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions and other financial instruments.
(i) Trade Receivables
All outstanding customer receivables of the company are regularly monitored. Company has not witnessed
any bad debts or long outstanding during the year. Furthermore, all outstanding customers receivables as on
reporting date are less than 6 months. Accordingly, trade receivables are subject to extremely low credit risk
and management has assessed that no impairment of trade receivables is required.
(ii) Financial Instruments and Cash Deposit
Credit risk from balances with bank and financial institutions is managed by the Company's finance
department under the supervision of company's senior management. All balances with banks and financial
institutions is subject to low credit risk due to good credit ratings assigned to the Company. This being under
the supervision of regulatory authority.

36 Related Party Disclosures

(i) Related Parties and the nature of relationship :

Particular Current Year Previous Year
Gujarat Rail Infrastructure Joint Venture Joint Venture
Development Corporation Limited
(G-RIDE)
Joint Venture Joint Venture

Maruti Suzuki India Limited(MSIL)

Gujarat Industrial Development Joint Venture Joint Venture
Corporation (GIDC)

Ministry of Railways (MOR) Promoters of Joint Venture-G-RIDE Promoters of Joint Venture-G-RIDE

Entities over which key management personnel and their relatives are able to exercise significant influence:
Guijarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited (G-RIDE)

Key Management Personnel / Executive Director
Shri Santosh Kumar CEO / Director
Shri S N Joshi CFO

Director Non-Executive

Shri Bajrang Warli Director

Shri Raj Swarup Kapoor Director

Shri Jwalesh Zaveri Director

Shri Pawan Agarwal Director (From 20/07/2022)
Shri Batchu Venugopal Director (till date 20/07/2022)
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(ii) Transactions with Related Parties

Summary of transactions / Joint Venture Promoters of Joint Venture Key management personnel and
Balances with Related Parties relatives

For the year For the year For the year For the year For the year For the year
Transactions during the year ended ended ended ended ended ended

March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2023 |March 31, 2022 |March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Loan received - - - - - -
Loan Repaid - - - - - -
Reim. of exp. (Capitalised-CWIP) - - - - - -
Other Expenses - Board Meeting Exp. - - - - 45000 15000
Interest Paid (Capitalised-CWIP) _ _ _ _ - -
Feasibility Study Expense - 3772000 - - - -
PMC Charges paid ( Capitalised-CWIP) 43075979 986 38 160 - - - -
PMC.Charges paid ( Capitalised-Freight 54729586 ) i ) ) )
Sharing Right)
PMC Charges Income ( MSIL Project) 2875000 86 25 000 - - - -
PMC Charges Exp. ( MSIL Project) 2791490 8708510 - - - -
Ra|IIPurchases— From MOR for MSIL ) ) ) 6 60 00 000 ) )
Project
Rail Purchases- (Capitalised-CWIP) - - - 1002 05 785 - -
Additional Feeder Bay for CWIP - - - - - -
Sale of Rails to MSIL - 6 60 00 000 - - - -
Sale of Construction Services-MSIL 198371940 36 46 20 536 - - - -
Equity Share Contribution Received 1152052 020| 304 5422000 - - - -
Bid Processing Fees-Collected & 7500 7500 ) . ) )
Transfer
Total 1423903 515| 3595793706 - 16 62 05 785 45 000 15000
Summary of transactions / Joint Venture Promoters of Joint Venture Key management personnel and
Balances with Related Parties relatives

For the year For the year For the year For the year For the year For the year
Transactions during the year ended ended ended ended ended ended

March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2023 |March 31, 2022 |March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Amount Receivable 89124844 136799 196 - - - -
Amount Payable 14266847 - - - - -
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37. Fair Value Measurements
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments:
Category As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
1) Financial assets at Amortized Cost
Trade receivables (Current & Non Current) 89124 844 89124844 136799196 136799196
Cash and Cash equivalents 219435492 2194 35492 395925174 395925174
Other balances with banks -- -- | 20000 00000 | 200 00 00 000
Other financial asset (Current & Non Current) -- - -- -
Total| 308560336 | 308560336 | 2532724370 2532724370
2) Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Borrowings - - - -
Trade payables 206940 349 20 69 40 349 3024 49 455 3024 49 455
Other financial liabilities (Current & Non Current) 7 59 05630 7 59 05 630 81217454 81217454
Total| 282845979 28 28 45 979 383666909 | 383666909

Fair Value Hierarchy

measurementasawhole.
Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2023:

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
Management has assessed that trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other
financial assets, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that has a significant effect on the fair value
measurement are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that has a significant effect on the fair value
measurementis not based on observable market data.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities.

] Total (Carrying Quoted Price in Significant Significant

Particulars Value) Active Markets observable unobservable
(Level 1) inputs (Level 2) | inputs (Level 3)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables 89124844 - - -
Cash and Cash equivalents 2194 35 492 - - -
Other balances with banks -- - - -
Other financial asset (current/non current) -- - - -
Total 30 85 60 336 - - ~
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Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities as at March 31, 2023:

. Quoted Price in Significant Significant
. Total (Carrying -

Particulars Value) Active Markets observable unobservable
(Level 1) inputs (Level 2) | inputs (Level 3)

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings -- - - -
Trade Payables 20 69 40 349 - - --
Other financial Liabilities(current & non current) 7 59 05 630 - - --
Total 28 28 45 979 -- -- -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2022:

Total (Carrying Quoted Price in Significant Significant

Particulars Value) Active Markets observable unobservable
(Level 1) inputs (Level 2) | inputs (Level 3)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables 136799 196 . - -
Cash and Cash equivalents 395925174 - - -
Other balances with banks 200 00 00 000 - - -
Other financial asset (current & non current) -- -- - -
Total 2532724370 - - -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities as at March 31, 2022:

. Quoted Price in Significant Significant
X Total (Carrying

Particulars Value) Active Markets observable unobservable
(Level 1) inputs (Level 2) | inputs (Level 3)

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings -- - - -
Trade Payables 30 24 49 455 - -- --
Other financial Liabilities(current & non current) 81217454 -- - -
Total 38 36 66 909 -- - -

38 Impact on previous year figures in Financial Statements due to Re-grouping:
Item Re-grouped Amount  |Grouped under the head in Previous | Grouped under the head in Current
year year
Payable against Capital Asset 15 95 250 | Trade Payable-Current Other Current liabilities
Balance with GSFS - Liquid Deposit 3143 49 947 | Other balances with banks Cash and Cash Equivalents
Bid Security/Ernest Money Deposit/Performance Security 107 250 | Trade Payable-Current Other Current liabilities
Trade Payable-Others-Accruals-Current 31 60 52 447 | Provosion-Current Trade Payable-Others-Current
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39 Note on Project Management Consultancy to G-RIDE
GRIDE is appointed by BRCL as Project Management Consultant for execution of project of Katosan Road —
Becharaji —Chanasma — Ranuj including MSIL siding at the value of 10% of the project cost as approved in the
1st meeting of Board of Director of BRCL held on 09.01.2019. Contract agreement has been executed as on
28.08.2020 for the same.
The PMC charges shall be kept at Original Estimated Cost, which is Rs 452.60 Crore, in two phases for claiming
total PMC charges Rs 45.26 crore. Phase-wise PMC charges are as under:
() Katosan Road to Becharaji incl MSIL Siding (Phase-I) 19.82 Crore
(ii) Becharaji to Ranuj (Phase-Il) 25.44 Crore
Total Sanctioned PMC charge 45.26 Crore
“As per contract executed with Gride on August 28, 2020 the details of stage wise PMC charges payable to GRIDE asunder:
(% in Crore)
Sr. : i )
Stages of PMC Sanctioned PMC Charges for |Stage-wise PMC (.Iharges for Phase:
No Phase-I I, Including Taxes
1 |Transaction Advisory (30% of sanctioned charges for Phase-I) 5.946
2 |Project Management (45% of sanctioned charges for Phase-I) 19.82 8.919
3 [Commissioning & Testing (25% of sanctioned charges for Phase-I) 4.955
(% in Crore)
Sr. Sanctioned PMC Charges for |Stage-wise PMC Charges for Phase-
No Stages of PMC Phase-II 11, Including Taxes
1 |Transaction Advisory (30% of sanctioned charges for Phase-Il) 7.632
2 |Project Management (45% of sanctioned charges for Phase-Il) 25.44 11.448
3 [Commissioning & Testing (25% of sanctioned charges for Phase-ll) 6.360
Billing Status as on 31.03.2023
Sr. Amount certified including GST Bill Raised
Stages of PMC
No
1 Transaction Advisory (30% of sanctioned charges for Phase-1) 594 60 000
2 Transaction Advisory (30% of sanctioned charges for Phase-Il) 7 63 20 000
3 Project Management (45% of sanctioned charges for Phase-l) (PMC Charges
@ 8.919 Crore for Rs 263.52 Crore* )
a |IPC-01tolIPC31 229 44 96 930 7 68 59 640
b IPC-32 & 33 at 31-05-2023 Amount in Column Bill raised X is excluding GST as 151420936 48 64 347
only provision for the same has been accounted for and not the total invoice
value (For the month of March 2023)
4 Project Management (45% of sanctioned charges for Phase-Il) (PMC
Charges @ 11.448 Crore for Rs 333.625 Crore* )
a IPC-01 to IPC 12 144 31 34 046 47370339
b IPC-13 at 07-07-2023 Amount in Column Bill raised X is excluding GST as only 19 73 54 808 64 27 688
provision for the same has been accounted for and not the total invoice value
(For the month of March 2023)
Total Bill Raised up to March 31, 2023 408 64 06 720 271302014
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During the year company has paid PMC to G-RIDE for MSIL inside siding work details of which are as under:
Total PMC charges for the work

PMC Charges incurred till March'22

1,35,70,000(including GST @ 18%)
1,35,70,000(including GST @ 18%)*
* Which includes Provision of Rs. 8,38,002/- excluding GST
40 The following expenditures have been capitalised as part of Intangible Asset under Development / Capital Work in
Progress
For the year ended on For the year ended on
Particulars 31t March 2023 31°* March 2022
Amount Refer Note No Amount Refer Note No
Advertisement Expense 5 5
Amount Transfer to Capital Work in progress - Land Acquisition - 20872
Amount Transfer to Capital Work in progress - Office - 500 184
Tamping Machine Expense 40 40
Amount transfer to Intangible asset under development - Phase | 231581
EPC Project Development Expense 40 40
Amount transfer to Intangible asset under development - Phase | 128 24 14 002 106 80 01 634
Amount transfer to Intangible asset under development - Phase Il 1590159 341 189210647
PMC Contract Expense 40 40
Amount transfer to Intangible asset under development - Phase | 24729585 27797 756
Amount transfer to Intangible asset under development - Phase Il 43075979 7 08 40 405
ROC & Legal Charges 40 40
Amount transfer to Intangible asset under development - Phase | - -
Amount transfer to Intangible asset under development - Phase Il - 59 000
Electricity Expense 40 -
Amount transfer to Intangible asset under development - Phase | 357576 -
Total 294 07 36 483 135 66 62 079
Note: As authorization for operation of goods traffic for Phase | has been Approved by Western Railway on 23 March 2023. Hence,
Phase | of the project has been capitalised in Freight Sharing Right accordingly on 23 March 2023
= = = = = =\ [ —==
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41 Ageing for Capital workin progress asat March 31,2022 is as follows:
(Amount in %)
Capital work in progress Lessthan 1year| 12years | 2-3years | MOlethan3 TOTAL
Capital Work in Progress-Office* 19064 267 253110 - - 19317377
Capital Work in Progress-Land Acquisition 41323373 564 125 - - 418 87 498
Total 6 03 87 640 817 235 - - 612 04 875
Ageing for Capital workin progress asat March 31,2023 is as follows:
(Amount in %)
Capital work in progress Less than 1year| 1-2years 2-3 years Mo;ee:,?sa n3 TOTAL
Capital Work in Progress-Land Acquisition** 72013770 16618 708 - - 88632478
Total 72013770 166 18 708 - - 88632478

*As work of office of BRCL has been completed on 15.02.2023. Hence, Capital Work in Progress-Office project
has been capitalised accordingly on February 15, 2023.(Refer Note 4)

**As authorization for operation of good traffic for Phase 1 has been Approved by Western Railway on 23
March 2023. Hence, Capital Work in Progress-Land Acquisition for Phase 1 of the project has been capitalised

accordingly on March 23, 2023.(Refer Note 4)

42 Intangible Assets Under Development (Freight Sharing Right Under Development)
Sr PAHSE | PAHSE Il
No
For the Year For the Year For the Year For the Year
Category of works / Item Description ended on 31 ended on 31 ended on 31 ended on 31
March 2023* March 2022 March 2023** March 2022
(A) (B) @ (D)

i | Civil & Track Works 247 81 56 556 13452 36 377 134 20 04 669 144970726
Project Facilities 20017 546 19076376 3140279 423330
Earthwork 598261315 249994732 4534 38 361 _
Protection work 92979174 4 82 66 457 85992 -
Major Bridges including PSC Slab bridge 81759023 47606494 1004 95 472 -
Minor Bridges including PSC Slab bridge 44 08 05 592 17 96 41 003 14 40 54 040 -
RUBs 48 57 80 900 301076 702 18 60 10 302 -
Track Works 49 02 65 906 381074534 399891 045 14 4547 396
Other Civil Engineering works including FOB & Subways 226110597 118500079 54889179 _
Integrated testing and commissioning after satisfactory execution of Civil & 16627577
Track work - - -

ii | Signalling Works 12 83 99 037 96081671 11 66 86 057 54 36 896

iii | Telecommunication works 20462902 102 86 291 20334630 10592 607
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iv | Electrification (OHE Works) 19 65 80 043 1129 28 412 26 79 06 509 -
Overhead Equipment Work, Modification of OHE, TSS, SS 112928412 -
v | General Electrical Works (GEW) 413 07 465 17959 252 32338123 28210417
Various electrical general services Works 109 52 403 26302136
Modification of HT power lines crossings up to 33 KV (replacement by UG ) 70 06 849 1908 281
vi | Project management Consultancy Charges 1177 23 087 92993501 113916384 7 08 40 405
vii| Payment to GETCO for electrical work 29057 259 29057 259 225390515 199549711
viii Site cleaning work 121125 121125 R )
ix | Interest on Loan from G-RIDE 49 62 195 49 62 195 - -
x | Payment for Rails Purchased from Railway 47 57 19 040 1284 58 891 13,01,01,555 -
xi | Payment for Additional Feeder Bay 30920949 309 20949 - -
xii| Others 2117 768 195 546 280454 2380454
Sub Total 35255 27 427 186 92 01 468 224 89 58 896 4598 81 216
Less : Interest on Mobilization Advance* 40931969 39372045 43159719 14544679
Total Intangible Assets Under Development 348 45 95 458 18298 29 423 2205799177 44 53 36 537
Less : Transfer to Intangible Asset-Freight Sharing Right*** 34845 95 458 - - -
- 18298 29 423 2205799177 44 53 36 537
Total Intangible Assets Under Development year ended 31st March 2023 ( Total of C) 2205799177
Total Intangible Assets Under Development year ended 31st March 2022 ( Total of B+D) 2275165960
Note:
*Above figure includes Price Variation & Change of Scope amount of Rs. 27,12,93,956/- for Phase |
**Above figure includes Price Variation of Rs. 13,88,81,136/-for Phase |
***As authorization for operation of goods traffic for Phase | has been Approved by Western Railway on 23 March 2023. Hence,
Phase | of the project has been capitalised accordingly on 23 March 2023.
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Ageing for Intangible Assets Under Development as at March 31,2023 is as follows:
Intangible Assets Under Development Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mo;ee;?:n 3 TOTAL
Project in progress - Phase | -| 1176095444 | 653733979 - 1829829423
Project in progress - Phase Il 176 04 62 640 44 53 36 537 - - 2205799177
Total 176 04 62 640| 1621431981 | 653733979 - 403 56 28 600
Ageing for Intangible Assets Under Development asat March 31,2022 is as follows:
Intangible Assets Under Development Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mo‘r/eezlr\:n 3 TOTAL
Project in progress - Phase | 117 6095 444 653733979 - - 18298 29 423
Project in progress - Phase Il 44 53 36 537 - - - 44 53 36 537
Total 162 14 31 981 653733979 - - 227 51 65 960
43 Capital Commitment
Forthe yearended 31°* March 2023
Name of party with whom Contract Executed Total value of Contract value Executed till | Remaining Contract value
contract* March 31, 2023
Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited-EPC Contract 267 63 25 388 2473173634 203151754
jarat Rail Infrastruct D | tC ti
G.u@ra ail Infrastructure Development Corporation 45 96 00 000 27 33 34 580 17 92 65 420
Limited-PMC Contract
Ashoka Buildcon limited 349 52 91 460 186 53 99 806 162 98 91 654
Haresh Patel Engineers & Contractors 47015388 45582123 14 33 265
Total Capital Commitment 667 1232 236 465 74 90 143 20137 42 093
*Note: contract value has been revised due to change in GST Rate from 12% to 18%.
Forthe year ended 31 March 2022
Name of party with whom Contract Executed Total value of Contract value Executed till | Remaining Contract value
contract March 31, 2022
Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited-EPC Contract 263 52 00 000 17488 62 021 886337979
Guijarat Rail Infrastructure Development Corporation 45 26 00 000 1917 72 345 26 08 27 655
Limited-PMC Contract
Ashoka Buildcon limited 333 62 50 000 522835647 2813414 353
Haresh Patel Engineers & Contractors 4 46 08 899 166 13390 27995509
Total Capital Commitment 646 86 58 899 248 00 83 403 398 85 75 496
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44 Various Financial Ratio are disclosed as under :
;: Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-03-2023 | 31-03-2022
1 |Current ratio (X) Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.20 7.84
Reason for change: Proportionate change in current liability as compared to change in current assets is more.
Shareholder’s Equity( Capital
2 [Debt equity ratio (X) Total Debt quity( Cap NIL NIL
plus reserve)
Net Profit before taxes + Non-
cash operating expenses like
. . depreciation and other Interest & Lease Payments +
3 [Debt service coverage ratio (X) . L NIL NIL
amortizations + Interest + Principal Repayments
other adjustments like loss on
sale of Fixed assets etc
4 |Ret Equity (%) Net Profits after taxes - Average Shareholder’s Equit (45.34)% 21%
eturn on tquity o Preference Dividend (if any) € quity R ?
Average Inventory (Opening +
5 [Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold OR sales & . v (Op 8 NIL NIL
Closing balance / 2)
. . Net Credit Sales (gross credit | Average Accounts Receivable
6 [Trader receivable turnover ratio . . . 2.26 3.21
sales minus sales return) (Opening + Closing balance / 2)
Reason for change: As there were less Trade Receivables as compare with previous year.
Net Credit Purchases (gross
7 [Trade payable turnover ratio credit purchases minus Average Working Capital 0.04 0.07
purchase return )
Reason for change: As there were increase in trade payable with decrease in avarage working capital.
) . Net Sales (total sales minus . .
8 |Net capital turnover ratio Average Working Capital 0.04 0.07
sales returns)
Reason for change: As there were decrease in Sales compare with previous year.
9 |Net profit ratio Net Profit Net Sales (0.13)% 0.01
Reason for change: As there were decrease in Sales compare with previous year.
Capital Employed (Tangible
. Earning before interest and P ployed (Tang
10 [Return on capital employed taxes Net Worth + Total Debt + 0.010 0.003
Deferred Tax Liability)
Reason for change: Proportionate increase in capital employes is more than increase in income
11 [Return on investment | Return | Investment NIL NIL
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aperiod of 5 years at monthly rent of Re. 1,60,285/-

Maturity Analysis of Lease Liability

45 Following expense includes prior period expense as under:
Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022 Refer Note No
Rent Expense - 2393927 28
Repairs & Maintenance - 344330 28
ROC & legal charges - Professional Tax - 9717 28
Total - 27 47 974
46 Lease Arrangements

The Company has entered into an agreement with Gujarat Udhyog Bhavan Society for obtaining office premise on lease for

The above lease has been accounted by debiting Right of Use - leasehold office and crediting corresponding lease liability.
Thevalue of lease liability has been derived by discounting future lease payments of 5 years @ 9.5% p.a.

Particulars Less Than 12 More Than 12 Total Liability
Months Months
As at March 31, 2023 14 42 900 42 65 240 57 08 140
As at March 31, 2022 1312625 57 08 140 70 20 765
Amount Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss
Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Interest on Lease Liabilities 6,10,795 3,50,532
Amortisation of ROU Assets 15,26,389 7,63,194
Total 2137184 1113726
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Details of Right of Use (ROU) Assets - Leasehold office:

Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Opening Carrying Value as at Balance Sheet Date 68,68,749 -
Addition to ROU Assets during the year - 76,31,943
Amortisation of ROU Assets during the year 15 26 389 7,63,194
Closing Carrying Value as at Balance Sheet Date 5342 360 68 68 749

a7
year.

Figures of previous year have been re-grouped/ re-classified wherever necessary to make them comparable with current
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